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The John James Jones House is a twomstory frame structure located on
Jones Avenue, one block from the business distriet of Waynesboro, Georgia.
The nominated property i1s comprised of 6.6 acres. .

The Jones House, built in 1876, is a combination of the Greek Revival and
Victorian styles of architecture, The heavy frame construction of the two-
story portion of the structure is.evident iIn the small basement. The two-
story cantilevered portico has six Doric columms. The center columns are ori-
ginal, while the remaining columns were replaced im 1975, The front door with
overlight and sidelights is flanked on each side by two windows. A canti-
levered balcony is located directly over the front door, while second-floor
windows are found over the first-floor windows. Flushboards are found on the
front facade of the structure, while weatherboards are found on the remaining
facades. The wooden floor of the front porch was replaced by brick in 1975.
Two one-story wings are located teo the rear of the structure at a perpendicu-
lar angle. A porch, enclosed recently, connects the two wings. The exterior
ironwork was obtained from '"Ingleside'" in Augusta in the 1940s.

The floor plan of the Jones House is essentially Victorian. The first-
floor rooms contain elaborate Greek Revival ornamentation, some of which has
been added in the last forty years. The mirrors, chandeliers, marble mantels
and other ornamentation were added in 1948. The second-floor rooms are less
ornate. The unusual third~floor stairway leads into the attic. One of the
attic rooms is finished completely in heart pine, while the other attic room
remains unfinished. The house was remodeled and redecorated in 1948 and again
in the 1970s.

A garage, located behind the house, has been constructed on the site of
the original kitchen. It was built from wood that was used in the construction
of the kitchen. A well site is located beslde the garage.

The Jones House is situated in a wooded setting in a residential neighbor-
hood. The front yard is landscaped with trees and various types of bushes.
The front yard has a circular drive that was once paved with brick. The back
yard was landscaped in the 1940s and the landscape consists of trees and vari-
ous types of plants.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The John James Jones House is significant to the architectural and local
history of Waynesboro., The Jones House is an example of am-antebellum style
of architecture that was comstructed in the Victorian period. The builder of
the house, John James Jones, was prominent in the political activities of
Waynesboro as well as the prefessional atmosphere of the town.

Architecturally, the house is an example of the persistence of the Greek
Revival style of architecture into the Victorian era. While the prominant
Greek Revival feature is found in the colonnaded portico, other Greek Revival
elements are moted in the Jones House. The bilateral symmetry of the facade
of the structure, the front door with overlight and sidelights, and the mas-
sive molding found in the first-floor reoms are typical qualities of the Greek
Revival architectural style. Also reminescent of the Greek Revival style is
the heavy frame construction, a rather conservative approach in construction.
Characteristics of the Victorian pertod are the tall, narrow proportions of
the structure, the asymmetrical floor plan and the bay window in the rear room.
While the technique involved in the censtruction of the cantilevered portico
and balcony 1s not a new innovation to the Victorian era, it is an indication
that the builder of the Jones House was interested in varied construction tech-
niques. It is reported that the builder, John J. Jones, modeled the portico of
the house after the Greek Reviwval portico of the residence of Senator Robert
Toombs, his wife's uncle.

John James Jones was born on September 13, 1824, at the family plantation

known as 0ld Canaan, He was educated at Emory College, Oxford, Georgia, and

~ graduated in 1845, He was admitted to the bar in 1846 and began his law prac-
tice in Macon the following year. After four years of practicing law in Macon,
he returned to Waynesboro to assume the role of planter for the family planta-
tion. He also opened a law practice in Waynesboro. In 1855, Jones married
Eva Toombs (1830-1900), niece of Senator Robert Toombs. In 1859, Jones was
elected to the U,S., Congress as the First District representative. When the
Stzte of Georgla elected to secede from the Unlon in 1861, Jones, along with
the rest of the Georgla representatives, retired from the U.S. Congress.
Jones' involvement in the Civil War included the operation of his plantation
to provide Confederate troops with provisions. In 1863, he was elected captain
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VERBAL BOUNDARY DESCRIPTION

' Boundaries are indicated by a heayy black line on Burke County Tax Map W-6.
The nominated property is parcgl 282,.
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of a large company that he organized. In 1864, Jones was appointed aide-de-
camp to Governor Brown with the rank of colonel. He remained in this capa-
city until the close of the war. Jones was elected a representative to the
first session of the General Assembly after the war (1865-1866) and was
placed on the judiciary committee. He was instrumental in developing and
remodeling Georgia laws to meet the changed conditions of the state. He
served on the Board of County Commissioners in Burke County, as well as the
Board of Public Schools. He was also involved in political activities and
served as the chairman of the Democratic Executive Committee of Burke County
for twelve years.

When the family plantation, '"Old Canaan," burned in 1876, Jones decided
to build his new residence on a section of the family plantation near the town
of Waynesboro. He moved his family to the new house and lived there until his
death in 1898. The house became the property of Jones' daughter, Mrs. George
F. Cox, and the ownership was later transferred to Mrs. Cox's daughter, Evelyn
Cox Waddill, in an estate settlement. In 1948, Mrs. Waddill sold the property
to Mr. and Mrs. Robert C. Neely. It was at this time that the land behind the
house was subdivided and sold as lots. The Neelys added much of the Greek
Revival ornamentation found in the house. Mrs. Neely was the tenth president
of the Garden Club of Georgia and she created the gardens to the rear of the
house. The property was purchased in 1973 by Dr. and Mrs. T.J. Horne, the
present owners. The Hornes made several changes in the structure in order to
insure its preservation, such as replacing four of the columns and strengthen-
ing the foundation.
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The True Citizen, April 20, 1861.

Knight, Lucian Lamar. Georgia's Landmarks, Memorials, and Legends. Atlanta:
Byrd Printing Co., 1914.




